
August 13, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Agenda 

 

Bedford County Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Board Meeting 

Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2024  

Time: 7:00 PM 

Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom 

Agenda 

Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham 

Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 

Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing 

Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas 

Minutes Approval: 

1. Approval of Special Called Commission Minutes from June 27, 2024 - Placed on the agenda by 

Rules & Legislative Committee. 

2. Approval of Commission Minutes from July 09, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without a 

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee. 

Public Comment Period: 

Elections & Confirmations: 

3. Elect notaries for September 2024 - Placed on the agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee. 

4. Appointment to CDC Board 

Presentations: None. 

Resolutions:  None. 

Additional Items by Standing Committees: 

Rules and Legislative Committee:  None. 

Law Enforcement Committee:  None. 

Courthouse and Property Committee:  None. 

Financial Management Committee: 

5. Quarterly Financials 

6. Surplus Property - BOE 

7. Lexis Nexis 

Other Business: 

Announcements 

Adjourn 

                         /s/ Chad D. Graham        

Chad D. Graham, Bedford County Mayor 

 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of Special Called Commission Minutes from June 27, 2024 - Placed on the agenda by Rules 

& Legislative Committee.

2



Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Thursday, June 27, 2024
Time: 7:00 PM
Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes
Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas

PRESENT
Bill Anderson
John Boutwell
Jason Boyette
Janice Brothers
Keith Davis
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Drew Hooker
Scott Johnson

Eric Maddox
Diane Neeley
Sylvia Pinson
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Mark Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick
Linda Yockey

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: None

2023-24 BUDGET AMENDMENTS:

Motion to approve made by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Pinson. Motion passed by voice vote.

Copies of the Budget Amendments are onfile in the Clerk's office.

RESOLUTIONS:
1. Resolution No. 25-1 - A Resolution Fixing the Tax Levy in Bedford County, Tennessee for the

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024.

Motion made by Vick. Seconded by Smith. Mark Thomas asked to amend the motion to
include waiving the reading. Vick and Smith agreed. Motion passed by roll call vote.
18Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 25-1

RESOLUTION FIXING THE TAX LEVY IN
BEDFORD COUNTY, TENNESSEE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY I, 2024

SECTION 1. BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Bedford County, Tennessee, assembled in special called session on the 27th day of
June, 2024, that the uniform tax rate for Bedford County, Tennessee, for the fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2024, shall be $2.3252 on each $100.00 of taxable property
county-wide. This is to provide revenue for each of the following funds and otherwise
conform to the following levies:

.EIDm
General
Highway/Public Works
General Purpose School
General Debt Service
County Capital Projects

RATE
$1.4300
0.0900
0.6200
0.1500
..Mill

Total Tax Rate $2.3252

SECTION 2. BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby levied a Gross Receipts
Tax as provided by law. The proceeds of the Gross Receipts Tax herein shall accrue
to the General Fund.

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all resolutions of the
Board of County Commissioners of Bedford County, Tennessee, which are in conflict,
are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution is in effect
from and after its passage. the public welfare requiring it. This resolution shall be
spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners.

Adopted this the 27th. day of June, 2024.

APPROVED:

Ci/f).k-
ATTEST:

Nn=M4~
County ClerkCounty Mayor

June 27, 2024 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
3

Item 1.



2. Resolution No. 25-2 - A Resolution Making Appropriations for the Various Funds,
Departments, Institutions, Offices, and Agencies of Bedford County, Tennessee, for the Year
Beginning July 1,2024 and Ending June 30, 2025.

Motion made by Pinson, Seconded by Yockey. Yockey asked to amend the motion to waive the
reading. Pinson agreed. Motion passed by roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUT.IONNO.26-2

ARESOLUTIONMAKINGAPPROPRIATIONS FOR THE VARIOUSFUNDS,
I)EPARTMENTS. INSTiTUTIONS, OFFICES ANDAGENCIESOF
BEDFORD COUNTY,TENNESSEE, FOR THE YEARBEGINNING

JULY I, 2024ANDENDING JUNE 30, 2025

SECTION L BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Bedford
County, Tennessee, assembled in a special called. session on the 27th day of June, 2024, that
the amounts hereafter set out are hereby appropriated for the purpose of meeting the expenses
of the various funds, departments, institutions, offices and agencies of Bedford County,
Tennessee. for the capital outlay, and for meeting the payme.nt of principal and interest on the
county's debt maturing during the year beginning July 1. 2024. and ending June 30, 2025,
according to the following schedule:

GENERAL FUND
51100 County Commission
51210 Board of Equalization
51220 Beer Board
51230 Budget and Finance Committee
51300 County Mayor
1;1310 Personnel Office
51400 County Attorney
51500 Election Commission (Including Voter Registration)
51600 Register of Deeds
61720 Planning
51750 Codes Compliance
51760 Geographical Information Systems
51800 County Buildings
51910 Preservation of Records
52100 Accounting & Budgeting
5.2300 Property Assessor's Office
52310 Reappralsal Program
52400 County Trustee's Office
52500 County Clerk's Office
52600 Data Processing
531.00 Circuit Court
53300 General Sessions Court
53400 Chancery Court
53500 Juvenile Court
53100 Judicial Commissioners
53900 Other Administrauon of Justice
53910 Probation Services
54110 Sheriff's Department
54130 Traffic Control
54210 Jail
54240 Juvenile Services
M490 Other Emergency Management
54610 ('..QuntyCoronetlMedical Examiner
54900 Other Public Safety
55110 Local Health Center
55120 Rabies and Animal Control

$ 165,832
8,000
1,000
3,003

386,562
104,653
250,000
321,638
417,672
366,378
369,117
71,SOO

1,713.01S
126,032

1,149,619
542.554
147,480
507.335
748,141
420,845

1,001,815
301,641
448,747
257,997
294,572
161,869
533.212

6.415,115
43,446

4,810,504
762,826

3.046,756
55,000

897,190
905,741
454.831

4

Item 1.



65130 AmbulancelEmergency Medical Services
55190 Other Local Health Services
55390 Appropriation to State
55510 General Welfare Assistance
55732 Convenience Centers
66100 Adult Activities
66300 Senior Citizens Asaiatanee
56500 Libraries
57100 Agriculture Extension Service
57500 Soil Conservation
57900 Other Agriculture & Natural Rescurces
58110 Tourism
58190 Other Economic & Community Development
58300 Veterans' Services
58400 Other Charges
58500 Contributions to Other Agencies
58832 American Rescue Plan Act Grant
58900 Miscellaneous

Total General Fund

DRlJGCONTROL FUND
58900 Miscellaneous

Total Drug Control Fund

HIQHWAY/pUBUC WORKS .FUND
58500 Contributions to Other Agencies
61000 Administration
62000 Highway and Bridge Maintenance
63100 Operation and Maintenance of Equipment
64000 Litter and.Trash Collection
65000 Other Chargee
66000 Employee Benefits
68000 Capital Outlay
99000 Other Uses

Total HighwaylPublic Worb Fund

GENEBALPURPQSESCHOQLFUND
71000 Instruction
7UOO Regular Instruction Program
71150 Alternative Instruction Program
71200 Special Education Program
71300 Career and Technical Education Program
72110 Attendance
72120 Health Services

S 5.922,022
74,016
54,000
75,070

1,831,919
6,000
17,000
199,435
155,681
70,000
113,905
2,069

110,000
129,101
563,869
185,000

3,986,045
1,507,563

S 43,214,737

s 100

s 100

$ 7,000
437,146

1,791,963
668,973
118,644
233.000
65,500

1.825,000
25,010

s 5.172,236

S 46,300,549
838.195

5,049,981
2,524,344
375,446
803,942

June 27, 2024 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
5

Item 1.



..1'1: L

72130 Other Student Support
72210 Regular Instruction Program
72220 Special Ed.ucation Program
72230 Career and Technical Education Program.
72250 Technology
72310 Board olEducation
72320 Office of the'Superintendent
72410 Office of the Principal
72520 Human Services (Resources) Personnel
72610' Operation of Plant
72620 Maintenance of Plant
72710 Transportation
73100 Food Service
73300 Community Services
73400 Early Childhood Education
76100 Regular Capital Outlay
99QOOOther Uses

Total General Purpose School Fund

CHILD NUTRITION FUND
72310 Board oCEducation
73100 Food Service
99000 Other Uses

Total Child Nutrition Fund

SCHOOL AGE CARE PROGRAM FUND
72310 Board of Education
73300 Community Services

Total Extended School Program Fund

GE~"ERAL DEBT SERYICE FUND
82100 General Government
82130 .Education
82210 General Government
82230 Education
82300 Other Debt Service· General Government

Total General Debt Service Fund

EDUCATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
91300 Educational Capital Projects

Total Edqcation Capital Projects Fund

COUNTY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
91130 General Administration. Projects
91130 Public Safety Projects
91190 Other General Government Projects

Total County Capital Projects Fund

IS 2,616,687
2,793,971
674,542
28,938

3,439,794
1,616,803
622.443

5,914,938
431,864

8,564,268
3,356.532
4,175,202

57,545
176,766
989,646

2,226,000
294,566

IS 93,872,962

IS 54,000
6,904,584

22,012

IS 6,980,596

IS 1.800
734,959

IS 736,759

IS 4,253,245
4,O68.2~~
1,229,182
3,688,363
185,750

S , 13,424,795

S 3,711,336

s 3,711,336

is 625,000
6,671,546
1,681,167

S 8,977.713

6

Item 1.



SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that theta are also hereby
appropriated certain portio ns of the commissions and fees for collecting taxes andlicenses and
for administering other funds which the trustee, county clerk. circuit court clerk, clerk and
master, register, and the sheriff and their officilllly authorized deputies and assistants may be
entitled to receive under state laws heretofore or hereafter enacted. Expenditures out of
commissions andlor fees collected by the trustee, county clerk, circuit court clerk. clerk and
master, register and sheriff may be made for such purposes and in such amounts as may be
authorized by existing law or by valid order of any court having power to make such
appropriations. Any excess commissions andlor fees collected over and above the expenditures
duly and conclusively authorized shall be paid over to the trustee and converted into the
General Fund a. provided by law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any fee officials, aa enumerated inSection 8·
22·101. Tennessee Code Annotated, operate under provisions of Section 8·22·104, Tennessee
Code Annotated, provisions of the preceding paragraph shall not apply to those particular
officials.

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any amendment to the budget.
except for amendments to the budget fot funds under supervision of the director of schools.
shall be approved as provided in Section 5·9·407, Tennessee Code Annotated. The director of
schools must receive approval of the Board of Education for transfers within each major
category of the budget, and approval of both the Board of Education and Board of County
Commissioner. for transfers between major categories as required by law.

One copy of each amendment shall be filed with the county clerk, one copy with the
chairman of the Financial Management Committee, and one copy with each divisional or
departmental head concerned. The reasonts) for each transfer shall be clearly stated; however,
this section shall in no case whatsoever be construed as authorizing transfer from one fund to
another, but shall apply solely to transfers within a certain fund.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any appropriations made by this
resolution which covet the same purpose for which a specific appropriation is made by statute
is made in lieu of but not in addition to said statutory appropriation. The salary. wages. or
remuneration of each officer, employee. or agent of the county shall not be in excess of the
amounts authorized by existing law or 118 set forth in the estimate of expenditures which
accompanies this resolution. Provided, 'however, that appropriations for such salaries, wages,
or other remuneration hereby authorized shall in no case he construed as permitting
expenditures for an office. agency, mstatuticn, division or department of the county in excess
of the appropriation made herein for such office, agency, institution, division or department of
the county. Such appropriation shall constitute the limit to the expenditures of any office,
agency, institution, division or department for the year ending June 30, 2025. The aggregate
expenditures for any item of appropriation shall in no instance be more than the amount herein
appropriated for such item.

SECTION 5. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution which may
hereafter be presented to the Board of County Commissioners providing for appropriations in
addition to those made by this Budget Appropriation Resolution shall specifically provide
sufficient revenue or other funds actually to be provided during the year in which the
expenditure is to be made to meet such additional appropriation. Said appropriating
resolution shall be submitted to and approved by the state director of Local Finance after its
adoption as provided by Section 9·21·403, Tennessee Code Annotated.

SECTION 6. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the county mayor and county
clerk, are hereby authorized to borrow money on revenue anticipation notes, provided such
notes are first approved by the state director of Local Finance, to pay for the expenses herein
authorized until the taxes and other revenue for the year 2024·25 have been collected. The
proceed. of loana for each individual fund shall not exceed 60% of the appropriations of each
fund and shall he used only to pay the expenses and other requirements of the fund for which
the loan is made. The loan ahall be paid out of revenue from the fund for which money i~
borrowed. The notes evidencing the loans authorized under this Section shall be issued under
the applicable sections of Title 9. Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated. Said notes shall be
signed by the county mayor and countersigned. by the county clerk. and shall mature and be
paid in fullwithout renewal not later than June. 30, 20.25.

SECTION 7. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the delinquent county property
taxes for the year 20.23 and prior years and the interest and penalty thereon collected during
the year ending June 30, 20.25, shall be apportioned to the various county funds according to
the subdivision of the tax levy for the year 2023. The clerk and master and the trustee are
hereby authorized and directed to make such apportionment accordingly.

SECTION 8. BE IT .FURTHER RESOLVED that all unencumbered balances of
appropriations remaining at the end of the year shall lapse and be of no further effect at the
end of the year at June 30.,2025.

SECTION 9. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution or part of a
resolution Which heretofore has been passed by the Board of County Commissioners which is
in conflict with any provision in this resolution he and the same IS hereby repealed.

SECTION to. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect
from and after its passage and its provisions shall be in force from and after July 1, 2024. This
resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners.

Adopted this the 27th day of June, 20.24.

Cj(u,~
County Mayor

ATTEST:.~~~APPROVED:

3. Resolution No. 25-3 - A Resolution Making Appropriations To Nonprofit Charitable
Organizations of Bedford County, Tennessee For the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1,2024 and
Ending June 30, 2025.
Motion to approve and waive the reading made by Anderson. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by
roll call vote. 18Ayes 0 Noes

June 27, 2024 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
7

Item 1.



Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 25-3

A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT
CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS OF BEDFORD COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY I, 2024 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, Section 5.9·109, Tennessee CodeAnnotated, authorizes the Board ofCounty
CommissionersofBedfordCounty to make appropriations to various nonprofit charitable
organizations and.

WHEREAS, the Board ofCounty CommissionersofBedfordCounty recognizes the
various nonprofit charitable organizations providing services in BedfordCounty have
great need of funds to carry on their charitable work,

NOWTHEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board ofCounty Commissionersof
BedfordCounty. Tennessee assembled in a special called session on the 27th day ofJune,
2024.

SECTION 1.That six hundred ninety one thousand three hundred fivedollars ($691,305)
be appropriated to nonprofit organizations in BedfordCounty as reflected below:

Account
NQ, A~ge~nwc~vL- £Axnyuo~u~n~t
101CountyGeneral Fund
101·55190-316 CommunityDevelopmentCenter
101-55510-309 TennesseeRehabilitationCenter
101·56100·316 SkillsDevelopmentCenter
101-56300-316 SeniorCitizensCenter
101-56500·316 Argie CooperPublicLibrary
101-67500-316 Soil&WaterConservationService
101-58110·316 TennesseeBackroads Heritage
101-58190-316 ShelbyvillePartnership EconomicDev.
101·58500·316 Fire Station#2
101·58500-316 Fire Station#3
101-68500-316 Fire Station#4
101-58500-316 Fire Station#5
101-58500-316 Fire Station#6
101-58500-316 Fire Station#7
101-58500·316 .FireStation#9 - Frank MartinRoad
101-58900·316 Arts Council
101-58900-316 CaregiverRelief
101-58900·316 GillilandCenter
101-58900-316 HavenofHope
101-58900-316 SouthCentral HumanResourceAgency
101-58900.316 CASA

SubTotal

131HighwayFund/Public Works Fund
101-58500-316 Senior CitizensCenter

SubTotal

Total

In-KindDonations (Basedon the value ofOfficeSpace)
Junio.r'sHouse
CommunityClinic
MiddleTennessee Spay& Neuter Clinic
ShelbyvillePartnership EconomicDev.
BedfordCounty/ShelbyvilleTourism&

Marketing

Total

s 7,000
74,470
6,000
17,000
199,435
70,000
2,069

100,000
25.000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
7,250
3,000
1,500
6,500
10,081
5,000

s 684,305

$ 7,000

$ 10,200
48,419
15,000
8,250

~

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all appropriations enumerated in Section 1
above are subject to the followingconditions:

1. That the nonprofit organizations to which the funds are appropriated shall file
with the County Clerk and the disbursing officials a copy of an annual report of its
business affairs and transactions and the proposed use of the County's funds.
Such annual report shaJJbe prepared and certified by the Chief Financial Officer
of such nonprofit organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c}. Tennessee
CodeAnnotated.

2. That said funds must only be spent by the named nonprofit charitable
organizations in furtherance of their nonprofit charitable purposes benefiting the
general welfare ofthe residents ofBedford County.

3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission ofBedford County
providing these funds to the above named non-profit charitable organizations to
be fully in compliance Section 5-9-109,Tennessee CodeAnnotated and any and all
other laws which may apply to County appropriations to non-profit organizations
and. 80 this appropriation ia made subject to compliance with any and all of these
laws and regulations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect from and after its:
passage and it;!provisions shall be in full force from and after July 1, 2024. This
resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commission this the
27th day of June, 2024.

APPROVED:

County Mayor

ATTEST:

~~
County Clerk

4. Resolution 25-4 - Resolution to Authorize Payment of Additional Compensation to Certain
Court Clerks

8

Item 1.



Motion to approve and waive the reading made by Vick. Seconded by Mark Thomas. Passed by
roll call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 25-4

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL
COMPENSATION TO CERTAIN COURT CLERKS

WHEREAS, the Tennessee General Assembly, in passing Chapter 195 of the
Public Acts of 2005, provided that clerks of court who serve more than Onecourt may
be paid additional compensation for the additional duties and time required in
serving multiple courts; and

WHEREAS, TennesseeCodeAnnotated, Section 8-24·102, as amended by
Chapter 195 of the Public Acts of 2005, nowprovides that the Board of County
Commissioners ofBedford County may pay such a clerk an additional ten percent
(10%) of the clerk's base salary, provided that such additional compensation is
authorized by a resolution of the county legislative body; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners ofBedford County has
determined that the base salary of court clerks in Bedford County is :s107,144; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners ofBedford County has
determined. that two (2) court clerks in Bedford County are currently serving as
clerk for the following courts: Circuit, General Sessions, Juvenile, Chancery and
Probate and that, in the opinion of the Board of County Commissioners. it is
appropriate to provide additional compensation to the clerk serving these courts.

NOW,THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,by the Board of County
Commissioners of Bedford County, Tennessee, assembled in the special caned
session on the 27,hday of June, 2024, at Shelbyville, Tennessee, that;

SECTION 1. The Board of County Commissioners of Bedford County,
Tennessee, authorizes the clerk serving the courts listed above to receive additional
compensation beginning July I, 2024, equivalent to ten percent (10%)of the base
salary paid the clerk as a general officerof the county.

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and
approval, the public welfare requiring it.

Adopted this 27th day of June, 2024.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

('j({).~
County Mayor

~(MYAk~
ounty Clerk

5. Resolution No. 25-5 - To Provide For Education Incentive Payments To Full-time Elected
Officials of Bedford County Government

Motion to approve and waive the reading made by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Yockey. Passed
by roll call vote. 18Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 25-0

TO PROVIDE FOR EDUCATION INCENTIVE PAYMENTS TO FULL-TIME
ELECTED OFFICIALS OF BEDFORD COUNTY GOVERNMENT

WHEREAS, under T.e.A. 5-1-310(i), counties are authorized and encouraged
to provide in the annual budget for payment of an educational incentive to full-time
elected county officials who attain the designation of "Certified Public
Administrator" under the University of Tennessee County Technical Assistance
Service's County Officials Certificate Training Program (COCTP); and

WHEREAS, Bedford County desires to provide for such an incentive payment
in its budget for the fiscal year 2024-25;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County
Commissioners of Bedford County, Tennessee, assembled in a special called meeting
on the 27th day of June, 2024, that:

SECTION 1. Any full-time elected county official and the Clerk and Master
of Bedford County who has completed the COCTP and attained the designation of
Certified Public Administrator and who submits to the county mayor proof of such
attainment on or before October I, 2024, shall be paid in an amount not to exceed
the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) less any payment received
from the State of Tennessee as provided in subsection (a). The incentive provided by
this section shall be paid in one (1) payment, no later than October 31, 2024, from
county funds appropriated for that purpose for the fiscal year 2024·25.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval,
the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 27tb day of June, 2024.

County Mayor

ATTEST:

~1'M4~
bounty Clerk

APPROVED:

ctLQ~
June 27, 2024 Board of Commissioners Special Called Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

9

Item 1.



6. Resolution No. 25-6 - A Resolution Making All Federal Grants To Bedford County In Regard
to Education Conform To The Federal Regulations of Such Grant

Motion to approve and waive the reading made by Yockey. Seconded by Smith. Passed by roll
call vote. 18 Ayes 0 Noes
Voting Yea: Anderson, Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Epperson, Farrar, Hooker, Johnson,
Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey

RESOLUTION NO. 25-6

A RESOLUTION MAKING ALL FEDERAL GRANTS TO BEDFORD COUNTY
IN REGARD TO EDUCATION CONFORM TO THE FEDERAL

REGULATIONS OF SUCH GRANT

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Bedford County Schools' Federal Projects Fund for the
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) projects shall be the budget approved for the
separate projects within the fund by the Bedford County Board of Education. Be it
further resolved that the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA - Part B
and Preschool) and Carl Perkins Vocational projects shall be the budget approved for
the separate projects within the fund by the Bedford County Board of Education and
the Tennessee Department of Education.

SECTION 1. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there are also hereby
appropriated certain portions of the commissions and fees for collecting taxes and
licenses and for administering other funds which the Trustee, County Clerk, Circuit
Court Clerk, Clerk and Master, Register and the Sheriff and their officially
authorized deputies and assistants may severally be entitled to receive under State
laws theretofore or hereafter enacted. Expenditures out of commissions, and/or fees
collected by the Trustee, County Clerk, Circuit Court Clerk, Clerk and Master,
Register and the Sheriff may be authorized by existing law or by valid order of any
court having power to make such appropriations. Any excess commissions and/or
fees collected over and above the expenditures duly and conclusively authorized
shall be paid over to the Trustee and converted into. the General Fund as provided
bylaw.

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any fee officials, as enumerated
in Section 8-22-101, T.eA, operate under provisions of Section 8-22-104, T.CA,
provisione of the preceding paragraph shall not apply to those particular officials.

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any amendment to the budget
shall be approved as provided for in Section 5-9-407, T.C_A.

One copy of each amendment shall be filed with the County Clerk, one copy with the
Chairman of the Financial Management Committee, and one with each divisional or
departmental head concerned. The reasonfs) for each transfer shall be clearly
stated; however, this section shall in no case whatsoever construed as authorizing
transfer from one fund to another, but shall apply solely to transfers within a certain
fund.

Adopted this 27th day of June, 2024.

~L ___
County Clerk

APPROVED:

2024-25 BUDGETS: (Includes County General Fund 101,Drug Control Fund 122,Highway/Public
Works Fund 131, General Purpose School Fund 141,Child Nutrition Fund 143, School Age Care
Program Fund 146, General Debt Service Fund 151, Education Capital Project Fund 177, and County
Capital Projects Fund 178).

Motion made by Mark Thomas. Seconded by Brothers. Motion passed by roll call vote. 15Ayes 3 Noes
Voting Yea: Boutwell, Boyette, Brothers, Davis, Farrar, Johnson, Maddox, Neeley, Pinson, Smith, Adam
Thomas, Mark Thomas, Thompson, Vick, Yockey
Voting Nay: Anderson, Epperson, Hooker

A copy of the Budget is onfile in the Clerk's office.

Adjourn

Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

Attestation

I certify that the minutes were completed on the 1st day of July 2024 and delivered to the Bedford County
Mayor's office.

DonnaThomas
BedfordCountyClerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the ---I-- day of July 2024.

tiL f).~
ChadGraham
BedfordCountyMayor

10

Item 1.



File Attachments for Item:

2. Approval of Commission Minutes from July 09, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without a 

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee.

11



Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes

Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Tuesday, July 09, 2024
Time: 7:00 PM

Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas

PRESENT
John Boutwell
Jason Boyette
Janice Brothers
Keith Davis
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Drew Hooker
Scott Johnson
EricMaddox
DianeNeeley
Sylvia Pinson
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick
Linda Yockey

ABSENT
Bill Anderson
Mark Thomas

Minutes Approval:
I. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from June 11, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without

a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee.

Motion to approve by Yockey. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

Public Comment Period: None

Elections & Confirmations:
2. Elect Notaries for August 2024 - Placed on the agenda by Rules & Legislative Committee.

Motion to approve by Boutwell. Seconded by Epperson. Passed by voice vote.
BEDFORD COUNTY CLERK

DONNA THOMAS COUNTY CLERK
100 PUBLIC SQ STE 104
SHELBYVILLETN 37160

Telephone 931-684-1921
Fax 931-685-9590

Notaries to be elected July 09,2024

ELIZABETHA BURRIS
LEA A BYNUM
EVA RCARTER
ALL! CHAMBLESS
ANGELINA P COUSER
BRIAN CREWS
JENNIFER EDMONDSON
RAMON GONZALEZ
MARY RENEEGOODWIN

MADISON HAYNES
JENNIFER MCWHIRTER
SUSAN PINKSTON
TAMMYLPOnS
IRMAVERONICA RAMOS
LEEANN SINTIC
LISA SMITH
JENNIFER THORPE

3. Shelbyville-Bedford County Library Board Appointment
Graham put forth Brent Pewitt. Motion to approve by Epperson. Seconded by Yockey. Passed
by voice vote.

Presentations: None.

Resolutions:
4. Resolution No. 25-7 - A Resolution Authorizing Bedford County to Join the State of Tennessee

and Other Local Governments in Amending the Tennessee State-Subdivision Opioid Abatement
Agreement and Approving the Related Settlement Agreement - Placed on the agenda by the
Financial Management Committee.

Motion to approve by Brothers. Seconded by Yockey. Passed by voice vote.

July 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

,... -
12

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. 25·07

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BEDFORD COUNTY 10
JOIN THE STATE OFTENNESSEE AND OTHER LOCAL

GOVERi"-lMENTS IN AMENDING THE TENNESSEE STATE·
SUBDIVISION OPIOlD ABATEMENT AGREEMENT AND
APPROVING THE RELATED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the opioid epidemic eontinnes to impact communities in the United States,

the State of Tennessee, and Bedford County, Tennessee.

WHEREAS, Bedford County has suffered harm and will continue to suffer harm as a result

of the opioid epidemic;

WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee and some Tennessee local governments have filed

lawsuits against opioid manufacturers, distributors, and retailers, including mMY federal lawsuits

by Tennessee counties and cities that are, pending in the litigation captioned In re: National

Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D, Ohio) (the MDL case is referred to as the

"Opioid Litigation");

WHEREAS, Bedford County has previously joined settlements with multiple

pharmaceutical distributors, manufacturers, and retail pharmacies;

WHEREAS, Kroger Co., a retail pharmacy and grocery chain, has proposed a settlement

that Bedford County finds acceptable and in the best interest of the community;

WHEREAS, the Tennessee legislature enacted Public Chapter No. 491 during the 2021

Regular Session of the 112'" Tennessee General Assembly and was signed into Jaw by Governor

Bill Lee on May 24, 2021, which addresses the allocation of funds from certain opioid litigation

settlements;

WHEREAS, the Tennessee legislature enacted Public Chapter No. 568 during the 2024

Regular Session of the 11311i Tennessee General Assembly and was signed into law by Governor

Bill Lee on March 15,2024, which would apply the statutory provisions passed in 2021 to the new

settlement with Kroger Co, if it becomes effective;

WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee, non·litigating counties, and representatives of'various

local governments involved in the Opioid Litigation have adopted a unified plan for the allocation

and use of certain prospective settlement and bankruptcy funds from opioid-related litigation

("Sett1ement Funds");

WHEREAS, the Tennessee State-Subdivision Opioid Abatement Agreement (the

"Tennessee Pian"), attaehed hereto as "Exhibit A." sets forth the framework of a unified plan for

the proposed allocation and use of the Settlement Funds;

WHEREAS, amendments to the Tennessee Plan, attached hereto as "Exhibit B," would

extend its terms to the proposed Kroger Co. settlement and would claritY some language

concerning the allocation of certain settlement funds; and

WHEREAS, participation in the settlement by a large majority of Tennessee cilies,and

counties will materially increase the amount of settlement funds that Tennessee will receive from

the pending proposed opioid settlement;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF

BEDFORD COUNTY, TENNESSEE,

Section I. That Bedford County finds that the amendments to the Tennessee Plan are

in the best interest of Bedford County and its citizens because they would ensure an. effective

structure for the commitment of SeUlement Funds to abate and seek to resolve the opioid epidemic.

Section 2. That Bedford COlJDtyhereby expresses its support for a unified plan for the

allocation and use of Settlement Funds as generally described in the Tennessee Plan.

·2·

13

Item 2.



Section 3. That the Bedford County Mayor is hereby expressly authorized to execute

the amendments to the Tennessee Plan in substantially the form attached as Exhibit "B" and the

County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any formal agreements necessary to implement a

unified plan for the allocation and use of Settlement Funds that is substantially consisten.twith the

Tennessee Plan and this Resolution.

Section 4. That the Bedford CountyMayor is hereby expressly authorized to execute

any formal agreement and related documents evidencing Bedford County's agreement to the

settlement of claims [and Utigation}specificallyrelated to Kroger Co. and any other settlement of

opioid-related claims thaI Tennessee hasjoined.

Section S. That the Bedford County Mayor is authorized to take such other action as

necessary and appropriate to effectuate Bedford County's participation in the Tennessee Plan and

this settlement.

Section 6. This Resolution is effective upon adoption, the welfare of Bedford County,

Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED this the 9th day of July. 2024.

-3-

Additional Items by Standing Committees:

Rules and Legislative Committee: None.

Law Enforcement Committee: None.

Courthouse and Property Committee: None.

Financial Management Committee:

5. Surplus Property - BOE

Motion to approve by Pinson. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

July 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

....

14

Item 2.



ITIMS SENT TO BEDFORD COUNTY SUAPWS TO BE TRANSFERRED OR SOLD FROM BEDFORD COUNTY SCHOOlS
Sltr. Central orta $lUI LaW ID:.,..; 5/JIJ12G2A Suten McO.. _~. offiCe It CO
Gav ·Purdluecl ·Qullllt!ty

·DetIII • ...beI'. By .8IIrcode ·ltem DeKrlption (hf.) Mlnllhcturer *SerI.. No. Mlb/Nadel *VI.
-- SPED 801128 Iai*lP 101& Del C7NYaJ2'- . IaIiIude 3380 <$2sO

SPED 63209 IaI*IP 2016 Del 781(05P2 IllllIude 33110 <$2S0
SPED 58145 IapIcip 3ot5- Dell CijVJ2C2 IIIfIudI E3350 ~
SPED 80830 r.ptgp 4016 Dell 97NYRJ2 II!IIiIUde 3310. <S2S0
SPED 'ea2eQ IpId 1012 APDIf" '. 007¥MOO1JFBN -.

mr7k2LUA <$250
SPED 88311l IPId 2of2 Apple. 007YW24UJFBN mr7k2WA <$2S0

4250
<$250
<$250
<$250
k$Jso.

--- <$250·
<$250,
<$250
$250

<SUo
<$250
<$250
<$250
<$250
.<$250

<$250

..- <$250
1<$250

OSmp OTron .....

ITEMS sonTO BEDFORDCOUNTY SURPlUS TO BETRANSFERRfD OR SOLD FROM BEDFORDCOUHTYSCHootS
$lb' Ubeny SIte LllbellD:
OIIM: SlJOJm4 MaIn""""_............. 'QuantltyG.,.,.,.... "Llbel' By ..... ..... Descrlpdon (ioU) Manuf_ ·SetlalNo. Make/Model "Vol....

44450 monit .... I of 15 Dell CN0WIlCT612812.-JCC.S&l Pl913SF cSHO

44467 monlt.... 20115 Dell CNONWXT67217U8JC&HM PI9USf <sHo

4061& --.« hilS 0.11 CNOtM6lC7426115964J1. P19OS8 <slSO

SJJ7S monitor 4 of 15 Dell CNOYGPI97:111241KOfN1 PItt4SF <$lSO

53142 mOnItor 50115 !)ell CNOVGPl97287246ECMlCl P1914SF <$l5O
KOBe monltor 'of15 0.11 CNOYGPl91281248KDGFI PI.914Sf <SUO
KOBe monitor 70115 Dell CNOTGPIDU7244PI)\W P1914SF <SUO
53374 monltor 10115 Dell CNOYGPJ97287248KDfU PUI4SF <$150
10272 monitor 90115 Dell GSIIVY72 Pl914Sf <$150
KOIC monitor 10of15 Dell CNOYGPlt1U72463J1HI. P1914SF <SI50
31570 IRCmtOf 11 of IS en 923Wf'(RUN0616 1711X ·suo
36041 monitor 12 of 15 en 939WPMC22N0119 196UW <$150
»492 _nit", 13 of 15 en 942WPOCUN0504 196UW ~$lSO
40621 monitor 14 of 15 Dell CNOGRNWX72872I iMANYl PI90SF <Suo
40611 monitor 15 of 15 Dell CNOGRNWX1287213MCGYI Pt90SF <$l5O
.0622 doll"''''' 1012 Dell GlP2JQl ~310 ~lSO
MIA desk1-aa- 2012 Dell HHDT/Ql -ciuuDiex 310 ~S*
360SI board 10115 VlI!WSclnIc RMHIOI6DI254 VA19llwm '<SlSO

<S150
<$150
<$uo
<$150
<$2S0
<$l5O

oSowpIuI Osa-.., 0',,,,,,",

6. Surplus Property - County

Motion to approve by Yockey. Seconded by Smith. Passed by voice vote.

15

Item 2.



ITEMS SENT TO BEDFORD COUNTY SURPLUS TO BE TRANSFERRED OR SOLD

Sent From: ....:::.B:.:ed:.::ford:::.::..:::C::;ou::.:;n:!j!y:_:E::;M:.::A.:.__ Sileo _.,:.16;:,;1:.;:8.,:.R:::ai:.::lroad=..:.A:.,:• .::e.:.::S:.::he:::lby",,-,-v:.:;iII.::c''-''.,:.'N:...:3:...:1.:.;16:;0'-- Dale: May-24

~Surplu. OS~r.p []Transrer

, ..: .'
Go. 0..Is Libel ~ Item DeserlDllo. Quullly MFR Model Serial No. Barcode II ·Stalul

Dell Optiple. 1010 PC I Dell 70 I0-Oot;i)i.x 3016090009 8S3 N
13271 0..11 Vostro 200 PC I Dell 200 Vostro 4XQYQDI 675 N
13272 Dell XPS PC I Dell XPS 2W6HFXI 636 N

Dell XPS PC I Dell XPS 2W5GFXI 536 N
Dell ATG-LAPtop I Dell ATG 9R953QI N
Emerson TV I Emerson ME1AII41 163368 518 N
Halogen Flood light I N/A 0
Magnavox TV IVCRlDVD I Magnavox T42826734 UKN

HP Pavilion PC I HP HP Pavilion 3CR0040R43 612 N
Digital Video Recorder I 1I09416AOO23 N

·SmMn c*: (lM)ptntbk. N-N(:4 ()pI;rablc. UKN...()pn.tffij C~lIIdili:ofl UnkJ)lJ~"I11

C'lnbed'W:k:Q' I'ilemscooldb I().() l-N 2UNK

SurpervlsorlPriDdpal:

Cd.n bedlWkd e: IS*..,aMd b.: 1\).(),l.N,2-lJNK

~Cift,~ Coal •• 1Numb ....' _

tMM4K,'~

7. Quadient Postage Meter
Motion to approve by Epperson. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

.,-:.-~' ,../..
/ ...-.'

Quadient Proposal for BEDFORD COUNTY

CHANCERY COURT

_'lar.

~loliOwa

ongOkl~
8£DI'OROC(lUMT1 CHANaIII' eou ....

,"""","!>IF_ ...,..,
l>I>oordfOOCillOd' .... _,
20)..)01..3979 e.:L

~Io<.

July 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes
16

Item 2.



~?8"""·"",","·ftIoII
Hilbd.CT~
~

OVerview

ThIs~aIfet·--tlte __ l<ill"m_.""""'_andnll.~~ lor

only .... " per fNIII!h.

TI!e .-1__ ....Hrlcoturec
U.r.t.rifV~GnIIO 1IoIt'WlzaldIIICiI ~ ...... teIIIcdoiI and _ pOSIageOCllUR:lClle¥elJllime,

.... 1M (InIIIIIIomIHail fndIcIcI)~"""'1M!eI'
" 'ICIIb.~Kdaand1argadflPlall·
~~poIfGgt·tfoIorioads WIll! II!:III __ tnt.rnat~

I.4t lO·l,DQO~1II""!nII conctdgt _ t.-!nII E-tiIGIt -.,."" eIIICIintpI!lrring

c::a:.-_loposlQland~ ...... on~b~atllJOutl~
-""Ied USf'S • AI:a Chon9aupdaleo

Sr......"",

Barbaro I'eIdIa

~."tcom
2lIW()1o;m9ext

- "'- ~ThIII __ • '''"''''''' 0 1IIGt!1PMCI dlgll:GI CIIIIIIKIIon 'Of'PGIIGlIe downIoadIiand roi.
change III'Id SGftwonr uPd_

Ifthlt ....... orcomp...., _on !tie formI1MdItoM _Ited, pIMIM COIIfGCI_bef0r9·~ _ and IWIll
MnCIliav on·,,1IMIated CIQpy. ...

postage Meter Rental Agreement

Product: Quadient IX1

CSIIIIt60.240lZ
t • - .•• _- .-- _- ._-_. .._-_ •

..

:'.~.:._'I._~e~ CO\JNTY..... OWICERYCOURTd.-:.
!..... _.__ . - -------
I~ l08l'1C1111lctee~Or.:!!I!!> '"
i !HlBM.I..';OO7l6Or··-··----------
I~~~~- --·---------1
'EmaII:arootlO.h~4O" •
'_ - - ._- --- -- -----~
'_(931)684-1672: I'® 1~ ------- ._-_..__ .....__ ..__ .
,Offloelt 2l4O. NIrapast ~1Ie
·""""Pc.UJmcbl_~__ _ .• _. .•_._

,Offer YotIcIllI'IIiII_ .,_ ...-..~...- .....--- - _...__ ··__·......._-t

-~~.-- ... ~ -,,:,-~~-
""'~~~. §! - ..----- "I
~~~~~!_ -.-.---- .

17

Item 2.



Other Business:

8. Q4 REPORTS

Clerk & Master

Circuit Court ClerkiDriving School Director - Submitted report

County Clerk

Director of Schools - Dr. Tammy Garrett presented report.

Economic Development - Submitted report

Election Registrar - Submitted report

Hwy Superintendent - Submitted report

Property Assessor

Register of Deeds - Johnny Reed presented report.

Trustee - Tonya Davis presented report.

Announcements

• Cartwright Elementary Open House, July 11,5:00 p.m.
• Bedford County Fair, July 15-20. Opening ceremonies July 15,6:00 p.m.

Adjourn

Meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m.

Attestation

I certify that the minutes were completed on the 16th day of July 2024 and delivered to the Bedford
County Mayor's office.

Donna Thomas
Bedford County Clerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the It; day of July 2024.

BedfordCountyMayor

July09,2024BoardofCommissionersCommissionerBoardMeetingMinutes

I ... 1

18

Item 2.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Quarterly Financials

19



20

Item 5.



21

Item 5.



22

Item 5.



23

Item 5.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



29

Item 5.



30

Item 5.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



33

Item 5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. Surplus Property - BOE

34



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



38

Item 6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. Lexis Nexis

39



40

Item 7.



41

Item 7.



42

Item 7.



43

Item 7.


	Top
	Item 1.	Commission Minutes
	Special-Called Meeting 2024-06-27

	Item 2.	Commission Minutes
	Regular Monthly Meeting 2024-07-09

	Item 5.	Quarterly Financials
	Quarterly Financials

	Item 6.	Surplus Property-BOE
	Surplus Property - BOE

	Item 7.	Lexis Nexis
	Lexis Nexis

	Bottom



